
 
 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

Tuesday, September 16, 2014 



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 ‐ 1:00 P.M. 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Trustees:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Alan Weiner, Vice Chairman; Derwin Bright, Trustee; 
Randy Goers, Trustee; Steve Kenny, Trustee; Julio Muniz, Trustee; Sonya Little, Chief 
Financial Officer 

 
Supporting Staff:  Mark Boghich, Pension Plan Supervisor; Justin Vaske, Assistant City Attorney and 

Board Attorney; Mark Boghich, Recording Secretary; Lee Huffstutler, Chief 
Accountant; Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager; Deborah Hodo, 
Pension Reporting Accountant; Rosie Santos, Pension Relationship Accountant;  

    Jill Wood, Office Support Specialist II 
 
Consultants:   Jason Pulos and Andrew Gillentine, Asset Consulting Group; Stephen Lambert Oswald 

and Bruce Crosswhite, AON/Hewitt 
 
Location and Time:  City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
  September 16, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to 
participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Pension Office at least 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. 

 
Page Numbers 

I. Roll Call 
 

II. Public Comments – Ten (10) Minutes 
 

III. Approval of Minutes 
  Meeting Minutes for August 19, 2014 (MOTION) .................................................................... 3 ‐ 10 

 
IV. Medical Disability Hearing 

1. Ron Starr ................................................................................................................. Handout 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 1 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY – SEPTEMBER 16, 2014  
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
V. Staff Report 

1. Demand Letter Update – Rebecca Katz – Motley Rice LLC (Motion) ........................ 11 ‐ 18 
2. Forfeiture Procedure Update – First Reading (Motion) ............................................ 19 ‐ 23 
3. Engagement Letter FordHarrison .............................................................................. 24 ‐ 26 
4. Board Credit Card Request Update (Motion) ...................................................... Discussion 
5. Board Fiduciary Insurance Renewal (Motion) ........................................................... 27 ‐ 31 
6. DROP Rate of Return for the period ending June 30 ‐ Option 1 (Motion) ................ 32 ‐ 33 
7. DROP Rate of Return for the period ending June 30 ‐ Option 2 (Motion) ................ 34 ‐ 35 
8. JP Morgan Money Market Daily Rate of Return (Motion) ........................................ 36 ‐ 37 
9. Trustee Election Update (Motion) ...................................................................... Discussion 
10. August 2014 Performance Report – ACG .................................................................. 38 ‐ 40 
11. International Managers Presentations  ................................................................. Handouts 

a. Aberdeen ‐ Emerging Markets ‐ Ashley Cassel, Client Relationship Manager and 
Maree Mitchell, Senior Equity Specialist  

b. Fisher – Foreign Equity Fund (Growth‐Oriented) ‐ Read Williamson, Vice 
President, Relationship Manager and Margaret Chan, Vice President, 
Relationship Manager 

c. Mercator – International Equity (Value‐Oriented) ‐ Barbara Trebbi, General 
Partner, Portfolio Manager and Cindy New, General Partner, Portfolio Manager 

12. Pension presentation update .............................................................................. Discussion 
 

VI. Consent Agenda (MOTION) 
 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Applications, DROP to Longevity, Disability Retirement, Deferred 
Retirements, Spouse Benefits, Estate Payments and Death Benefits……….. ................................. 41 
 

Monthly Invoices:  
1. COMSERV ‐ (August 27) ‐ $ 62.00 ................................................................................ 42 
2. COMSERV ‐ (September 10) ‐ $ 62.00 .......................................................................... 43 

 

Miscellaneous Invoice: 
1. Tampa Occupational Health Services (Yulee) ‐ $1,200.00 ........................................... 44 
2. Workhealth Occupational Medicine Clinic (Yulee) ‐ $1,740.00 ................................... 45 
3. Tampa Neurology Associates (Dorta) ‐ $1,550.00 ....................................................... 46 
4. Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick LLP ‐ $175.00 ........................................................... 47 ‐ 48 

 
VII. Adjournment 

  
 

Next Meeting – 1:00 p. m., Tuesday, 
October 21, 2014 ‐ Regular Board Meeting 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 2 of 48



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – AUGUST 19, 2014 ‐ 1:00 p.m. 
 

1  
 

 

The Board of Trustees for the General Employees Retirement Fund convened in a regular session at 1:00 
p.m. on this 19th day of August, 2014 in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy 
Blvd., Tampa, FL 33602.   
 
Support Staff: Mark L. Boghich III, Pension Plan Supervisor; Justin Vaske, ACA and Board Attorney; Mark  
L. Boghich III, Recording Secretary; Lee Huffstutler, Chief Accountant; Terrie Williams, Accounting 
Operations Manager; Deborah Hodo, Pension Reporting Accountant; Rosie Santos, Pension Relationship 
Accountant;  and Jill Wood Office Support Specialist II.  
 
Consultants to Board:   Jason Pulos and Andrew Gillentine, Asset Consulting Group; Stephen Lambert 
Oswald and Bruce Crosswhite, AON Hewitt;  
 

I. ROLL CALL  

 
Mr. Carrera, Chairman, presiding, brought the meeting to Order at 1:00 p.m.   
 
Board Members Present Included:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Alan Wiener, Vice Chairman; Randy Goers, 
Trustee; Steve Kenny, Trustee; Derwin Bright, Trustee.   Members absent Sonja Little, Chief Financial 
Officer, and Julio Muniz, Trustee. 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS‐ Ten (10) Minutes 

 
There were no public comments.  
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Mr. Boghich requested the board approve the minutes from the July 15th meeting.  
 
MOTION: (Weiner‐Bright & Goers ) On a motion made by Mr. Weiner, and seconded by Mr. Bright and 
Mr. Goers, to approve the minutes from the July Board meeting  stands approved as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 3 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

2  
 

IV. Medical Disability Hearing 

 
1.  Ron Starr 
 
Mr. Boghich reviewed letter dated July 23rd concerning Mr. Ron Starr. Mr. Boghich cited Pension law “An 
employee who has become totally and permanently disabled, unable to provide any useful service to the 
City of Tampa”. We received a report from Dr. Hughes and states in the relevant part “based upon the 
review of Mr. Starr’s extensive medical records his independent evaluation today/at this time Mr. Starr is 
partially and permanently disabled but could provide a useful and efficient service provided that 
reasonable accommodation could be made...within the next 6 months to 1 year his status could change.” 
We also received a report from Human Resources stating they have two positions Mr. Starr could 
complete, Customer Service Clerk 1 and Customer Service Representative 1. Given these facts, the 
current staff recommendation is to deny this application. Mr. Starr was present and advised the board his 
status will change in a couple of months according to his kidney doctor. He stated, “I am coming before 
the board to ask them to reconsider the letter of denial that I received”. One of the board members 
questioned if this denial would prohibit Mr. Starr from reapplying for disability? Mr. Boghich and Mr. 
Vaske advised he could reapply. 
 
Mr. Boghich advised upon receipt of additional medical records we would forward them to Dr. Hughes 
for reevaluation. Mr. Starr stated he understood he would have to remain as an active employee to 
provide additional medical records. Mr. Carrera requested Mr. Starr return to the podium to verify and 
reiterate the understanding of “active employee” and Mr. Starr said he did.  Mr. Carrera and Mr. Goers 
suggested that Mr. Starr acquire additional information from his kidney doctor and have it sent in for a 
reevaluation/application via Dr. Hughes. Mr. Starr stated he would. 
 
MOTION: (Weiner‐Goers) On a motion made by Mr. Weiner, and seconded by Mr. Goers, to follow the 
advice of our council and decline the application for disability benefit being requested at this meeting. 
MOTION CARRIED.   
 
2. Lorrie Mejia 
 
Mr. Boghich advised that a summary based on the report from Dr. Hughes is that Ms. Mejia is totally and 
permanently disabled with a staff recommendation of approval for this disability application. 
 
 
MOTION: (Weiner‐Kenny) On a motion made by Mr. Weiner, and seconded by Mr. Kenny to follow the 
staff recommendation and approve this disability application. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
3. Craig Quinn 
 
Mr. Boghich advised that a summary based on the report from Dr. Hughes is that Mr. Quinn is totally and 
permanently disabled with a staff recommendation of approval for this disability application. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny‐Goers) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Goers  to follow the 
staff recommnedation and approve this disability application. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 4 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

3  
 

 

V. Staff Report  

 
 

1. July 2014 Performance Report – ACG; 2. Quarterly Performance Report – ACG 
 

 Jason Pulos and Andrew Gillentine of ACG provided an update on the overall portfolio, markets 
and managers.  The market value of the Total Fund (“Fund”) was approximately $694.7 million 
at the end of June 2014, up from $683.1 million at the end of 2013.   Over the trailing one year 
ending in June, the Fund’s 18.7% return was 150 basis points ahead of the Policy Index and 
ranked in the 13th percentile of public fund peers.  Over the trailing five years ending in June, 
the Fund has experienced a strong annualized return of 13.6%, which was 60 basis points 
ahead of the Policy Index and ranked in the top quartile of public fund peers. 
 

 The strong performance of the Fund was a function of strong equity market performance over 
the last five years.   The Fund has had a slight overweight allocation to the strategic target to 
equities which has also been a positive.  In addition, individual managers have generally 
outperformed their relevant indices. 
 

 With strong gains in the equity portion of the Fund during the last few years, the Fund’s 
allocation to equities has grown beyond its strategic policy level target allocation while its 
allocation to fixed income has fallen below these target allocations.  ACG made 
recommendations to rebalance the Fund in order to bring the portfolio back in line with its 
strategic policy level target allocations by modestly reducing equity exposure and modestly 
increasing fixed income exposure.  This recommendation was approved by the Board. 

 

 ACG addressed a recent announcement related to the team managing the Waddell & Reed 
large cap growth portfolio within the Fund.  The current team has two long‐tenured lead 
portfolio managers who are supported by two associate portfolio managers.  One of the team’s 
associate portfolio managers was recently promoted within Waddell & Reed to lead portfolio 
manager of another strategy.  The key decision makers on this strategy were not impacted, and 
ACG has no concerns surrounding the announcement. 

 
3. Small Cap Managers Presentations 
  a. ClariVest Asset Management – Small Cap Growth – Robert Zimmer, Client Portfolio Manager 
 

ClariVest is a majority employee‐owned investment boutique founded in March of 2006, based 
in San Diego, California. We have managed a Small Cap Growth assignment on behalf of the 
City of Tampa since June 2007 and greatly value our long‐term relationship. There have been 
no changes to the investment team since our last presentation.  In fact the six senior members 
of our team have been together for more than a decade.  
 
Our philosophy centers on two core beliefs about investing. First, all things (e.g., companies, 
industries, sectors, and economies) go through cycles. Second, most people forget or 
inefficiently react to this first thing.  Our team seeks to earn excess return by identifying 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 5 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

4  
 

companies that surprise the market by their participation in an earnings growth cycle as they 
overcome negative or cynical sentiment. 
 
The performance of the portfolio relative to the Russell 2000 Growth benchmark, gross of fees 
for periods ending 6/30/2014, has been positive over the last quarter, one, three and five 
years. Going forward, we believe the period of slow economic growth will continue. As is 
almost always the case, but frequently ignored, even in sectors that are facing challenges, 
there will be individual companies that are thriving, and who may very well be a great 
investment now because of the cynicism around their area of the world. Perhaps now more 
than ever, a focus on good stock selection and solid risk control is critical. 

 
b. GW Capital Management – Small Cap Value – Scott Mullet, Senior Vice President and  
     Principal 
 
Organizationally, GW Capital had $3.3 billion in assets under management as of June 30, 2014. 
The firm has expanded equity ownership within its portfolio management team within the last 
year.  For the rolling 12 month period ending 06/30/14, we performed relatively in‐line with 
the Russell 2000 Value benchmark with both contribution and detractions coming from Issue 
Selection and Sector Allocation. Top stock performers included Avis Budget Group (CAR) and 
Comstock Resources (CRK).  Worst performers were Forest Oil (FST) and Ion Geophysical (IO). 
Both FST and IO were sold out of the portfolio. Positive sector contributions came from an 
overweight to Industrials and an underweight to Financials.  Sector allocation detractions came 
from the underweight to Technology and overweight to Consumer Staples.  Stocks highlighted 
were Brookdale Senior Living (BKD) as a positive contributor year to date and Rex Energy 
(REXX) as a negative one year to date.  Given GW Capital’s use of fixed income research, the 
firm continues to closely monitor yield spreads of the High Yield bond sector to 
Treasuries.  These spreads are well below historical averages but still above historical 
lows.  Tight yield spreads generally help small cap companies in their ability/flexibility to 
borrow and issue debt.  However, low yield spreads do not last forever and the firm will pay 
close attention to watch for a shift which may signal a negative trend for small cap stocks.  

c. Wellington Management Company – Small Cap Core – Kenneth Solano, Vice President and         
Account Manager 

 
As of June 30, Wellington managed approximately $24.4 million for the City of Tampa GE 
Retirement Fund and has managed assets for the Fund in this strategy since 1998.  Mr. Solano 
provided an update on the firm’s leadership noting that Brendan Swords succeeded Perry 
Traquina as CEO and Managing Partner effective June 30, 2014 and that Jean Hynes will join 
Phillip Perelmuter and Brendan Swords as one of three Managing Partners of Wellington 
Management. Jean is a Global Industry Analyst and Portfolio Manager on the Global Health 
Care Team specializing in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. Jean is also one of 
the 22 Global Industry Analysts that manage assets within the Small Cap 2000 strategy.  

 Effective May 2014, the Small Cap 2000 strategy was closed to new and existing clients. The 
strategy continues to perform well over short and long‐dated time periods. Year‐to‐date, as of 
June 30, the strategy outperformed its benchmark by 2.7% (5.9% for the Fund versus 3.2% for 
the Russell 2000 Index). For the trailing one year period, the strategy returned 28.9% versus 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 6 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

5  
 

23.6% for the index, outperforming by 5.3%. Since inception from October 1998, the strategy 
has outperformed the Russell 2000 Index by an annualized 3.6% (12.6% Fund versus 9.0% 
Index). Additional information on the strategy’s investment objective, process, team, 
performance attribution, and characteristics was provided by Wellington Management at the 
meeting.  

 
4. Cash Account Analysis  
 
Mr. Boghich reported the Cash Account Analysis schedule lists the cash inflows and outflows by month. 
Each month we process benefits payments to retirees and associated tax payments, vendor payments 
(August outflows are significantly higher as we pay our managers) then in September we process the 
quarterly disbursements for DROP participants for $1.7 million. We project we will require an $8.5 million 
of inflows to cover our outflows through the end of September.  
 
The Proposal from ACG is to obtain $8.5 million from Waddell & Reed to cover cash needs through 
September 30. We need a motion from the board to approve the transfer. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny‐Goers) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Goers, was accepted 
and approved as presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
5. Waddell & Reed Update – Waddell & Reed in an August 4 News Release announced the addition of 
two portfolio managers to the asset strategy team. ACG reported this is a normal course of business with 
the various investment teams at Waddell & Reed and they were not concerned on their end. 
 
6. Securities Monitoring Report – Rebecca Katz and Christopher Moriarty – Motley Rice LLC 
 
Ms. Katz and Mr. Moriarty explained the potential benefits to the City of Tampa General Employees' 
Retirement Fund, as a significant long‐term shareholder of Ocwen Financial Corporation stock ("Ocwen"), 
of submitting a litigation demand in connection with recently alleged corporate wrongdoing. Specifically, 
our presentation focused on (1) a $2.1 billion settlement between Ocwen and one of its subsidiaries and 
the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and the Attorneys General of 49 states over alleged mortgage 
servicing misconduct in December 2013; and (2) an ongoing investigation by the New York State 
Department of Financial Services into suspicious transactions between Ocwen and companies affiliated 
with Ocwen's chairman, William C. Erbey.  They explained that a litigation demand would seek to recover 
damages on behalf of Ocwen for any wrongdoing committed by Ocwen's board of directors and/or 
executive officers, as well as the implementation of corporate governance reforms to minimize the 
chance of future corporate misconduct.  The Board agreed to request Motley Rice to prepare a litigation 
demand letter for presentation at the next board meeting.   
 
 
MOTION: (Kenny‐Bright) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Bright, to draft a 
litigation demand letter for presentation at the next board meeting was accepted and approved as 
presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
  
 
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 7 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

6  
 

 
7. Board Credit Card Request Update 
 
Mr. Boghich had contacted JPMorgan and was advised they could provide board members with credit 
cards. Staff recommends if the board were to pursue obtaining credit cards that policies and procedures 
be established prior to issuance of credit cards to the board members. Mr. Boghich asked if the board 
wanted to move forward with obtaining credit cards.  
 
MOTION: (Kenny‐Bright) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Bright, to postpone 
the decision on credit cards until all members can be present at the next meeting was accepted and 
approved as presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
8. Trustee Election Update 
 
Mr. Boghich explained Emails were sent through the City Enews and bulletin board notification were 
posted informing pension participants of the open trustee position. 
 
9. DROP Investment Option Signup Update 
 
Mr. Boghich informed the board that GE Pension staff will be visiting various city work sites to inform 
DROP participants of their need to select their investment option for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
10. Pension Summary Sheet 
 
Mr. Boghich reviewed the Pension Summary Sheet which had been mailed to retirees in their last pension 
benefit payment advice and would soon be distributed to all city staff. 
 
11. Website Information and Statistics 
 
Mr. Boghich explained that a pension benefits calculator was available to city employees through the 
City’s Intranet and the City’s internet portal. Updates are made at least monthly to the pension 
information on the City’s GE pension webpage. Forms are also available to participants through the City’s 
GE Pension webpage. 
 
12. Pension presentation update 
 
Mr. Boghich announced that the pension staff had visited with Tampa Convention Center staff 3 weeks 
ago and 27 members participated in the pension presentation. Florida League of Cities and Nationwide, 
our two deferred compensation providers, and staff from our self‐ insurance office were present to 
answer questions on options available to staff after retirement. 
 
 
13. JP Morgan Class Action Settlement Memo     
 
Information was provided to the board on the financial results of $65.22 as a result of a Class Action Suit. 
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 8 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

7  
 

14. Fisher Asset Management Contract  
 
Mr. Boghich reported this contract is increasing the maximum amount payable for services rendered  
from $380,000 to $600,000. 
 
MOTION: (Weiner‐Kenny) On a motion made by Mr. Weiner, and seconded by Mr. Kenny, to up the cap 
on the contract with Fisher was approved as presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
15. Board Educational Conference Schedule  
 
MOTION: (Kenny‐Goers) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Goers, to accept the 
Conference schedule,  accepted and approved as presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
16. Training Reimbursement for Mr. Boghich $104.08. 
 
MOTION: (Weiner‐Kenny) On a motion made by Mr. Weiner, and seconded by Mr. Kenny, to reimburse 
Mr. Boghich for the training was approved as presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Mr. Boghich advised of two additions to the items on the Consent Agenda since initially sent out and that 
they are true and in order.  Mr. Boghich stated they were reviewed and they are true and corrected. 
 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  

Longevity Retirements, DROP Applications, DROP to Longevity, Deferred to Longevity 
Retirements, Surviving Spouse Benefits, Surviving Child Benefits and Estate Payments 

Monthly Invoices:  

1. City of Tampa Reimbursement ‐ $36,915.31 
2. COMSERV ‐ (July 15) ‐ $ 62.00 
3. COMSERV – (July 31) ‐ $62.00 
4. COMSERV – (August 12) ‐ $62.00 

 
Quarterly Invoices: 

1. Aberdeen ‐  $ 56,553.98 
2. CBRE‐Clarion ‐ $51,766.00 
3. ClariVest ‐$28,479.17 
4. Dodge & Cox ‐ $89,034.06 
5. Fisher ‐ $112,681.07 
6. GW Capital ‐ $ 44,293.55 
7. JP Morgan ‐ $53,096.82 
8. State Street ‐ $8,219.95 
9. Taplin, Canida & Habacht ‐ $31,411.34 
10. Waddell & Reed ‐ $128,018.95 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 9 of 48



BOARD OF TRUSTEES ‐ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2014  

 

 

8  
 

11. Wellington ‐ $35,061.54 
 

Miscellaneous Invoices: 
  1. Tampa Occupational Health Services (Mejia) – $1,200.00 
  2. Workhealth Occupational Medicine Clinic (Quinn) ‐ $750.00 
  3. Tampa Occupational Health Services (Quinn) ‐ $1200.00 
 
Deducted from Account: 
             4. Mercator ‐ $117,537.00 
  5. UBS Trumbell ‐ $89,264.30 

MOTION: (Weiner‐Kenny) On a motion made by Mr. Weiner, and seconded by Mr. Kenny, the Consent 
Agenda was accepted and approved as presented. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

VI. NEXT MEETING 

 
The next Regular Board meeting will be held at 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 16, 2014,  in City Council 
Chambers.   

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business, Chair Carrera adjourned the meeting at 3:30 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
                     __________________________________________ 
             CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
 
            __________________________________________ 
            PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR ‐ Mark L. Boghich, III 
 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY ‐ Mark L. Boghich, III 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 10 of 48



Rebecca M. Katz 
Licensed in NY

direct:  212.577.0041 
rkatz@motleyrice.com 

    
   
      

 

 
 
 

www.motleyrice.com 
“I will stand for my client’s rights. 

I am a trial lawyer.” 
–Ron Motley (1944–2013) 

 

MT. PLEASANT, SC | PROVIDENCE, RI | HARTFORD, CT | NEW YORK, NY 
MORGANTOWN, WV | WASHINGTON, DC | NEW ORLEANS, LA 

600 Third Ave., Suite 2101 
New York, NY  10016 

o.  212.577.0040    f. 212.577.0054 

September 16, 2014 
 

 
Board of Directors 
Ocwen Financial Corporation 
1661 Worthington Road, Suite 100  
West Palm Beach, FL  33409 
 
RE: Shareholder Demand Letter 
 
Dear Board of Directors: 
 

I write on behalf of the City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement Fund (“Tampa”),1 
a registered shareholder of Ocwen Financial Corporation (“Ocwen” or the “Company”), to 
demand that Ocwen’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) take action to remedy breaches of 
fiduciary duty by certain of Ocwen’s current and/or former directors and officers.  Between at 
least January 1, 2009 and the present, Ocwen’s directors and officers caused or allowed the 
Company to, among other things:  (1) engage in mortgage-servicing misconduct, which resulted 
in a $2.127 billion settlement with the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFPB”) and 
the Attorneys General of 49 states; and (2) engage in transactions with companies in which 
Ocwen’s management owns stock or stock options on terms that are beneficial to those 
companies and detrimental to Ocwen.   

I. Ocwen’s Settlement with the CFPB and Attorneys General  

On December 19, 2013, Ocwen and its wholly owned subsidiary, Ocwen Loan Servicing, 
LLC, entered into a $2.127 billion settlement with the CFPB and the Attorneys General of 49 
states to resolve an array of mortgage servicing misconduct by Ocwen; Ocwen Loan Servicing, 
LLC; Homeward Residential, Inc.; and Litton Loan Servicing, LP (collectively, the “Ocwen 
Defendants”).2   The Consent Judgment resolved allegations that the Ocwen Defendants engaged 
in misconduct that resulted in premature and unauthorized foreclosures, violations of 
homeowners’ rights and protections, and the use of false and deceptive affidavits and other 

                                                      
1 Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a record of Tampa’s trades in Ocwen registered common stock 
since June 3, 2009. 
2 See Consent Judgment, Consumer Fin. Prot. Bureau v. Ocwen Fin. Corp., No. 13-cv-02025-
RMC (D.D.C. Feb. 26, 2014) (the “Consent Judgment”).  On September 1, 2011, Ocwen 
acquired and became the successor in interest to Litton Loan Servicing, LP.  On December 27, 
2012, Ocwen acquired and became the successor in interest to Homeward Residential, Inc. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 11 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 2 of 8 
 

   
 

documents.  Specifically, the Consent Judgment resolved claims that the Ocwen Defendants 
violated: 

1. state laws prohibiting unfair and deceptive consumer practices with 
respect to loan servicing;  

2. state laws prohibiting unfair and deceptive consumer practices with 
respect to foreclosure processing;  

3. the Consumer Financial Protection Act of 2010, 12 U.S.C. § 5481 et seq. 
(the “CFPA”), with respect to loan servicing; and 

4. the CFPA with respect to foreclosure processing.   

In so violating these laws, the Ocwen Defendants: 

 charged unauthorized fees for default-related services;  

 provided false or misleading information to borrowers regarding loans that 
had been transferred from other servicers;  

 provided false or misleading information to consumers about the status of 
foreclosure proceedings where the borrower was actively pursuing a loss 
mitigation alternative offered by the servicers in good faith;  

 with respect to transferred loans with in-process trial and permanent 
modifications, deceptively sought to collect payments from the consumer 
under the mortgage’s original unmodified terms; and  

 prepared, executed, notarized, and presented false and misleading 
documents, filed false and misleading documents with courts and 
government agencies, or otherwise used false or misleading documents as 
part of the foreclosure process.3 

Tampa now demands that the Board take action to investigate and remedy the harm 
inflicted on the Company by its directors and officers in permitting this conduct.  

 
                                                      
3 See Complaint, Consumer Fin. Prot. Bureau v. Ocwen Fin. Corp., No. 13-cv-02025-RMC 
(D.D.C. Dec. 19, 2013), at 12-13. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 12 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 3 of 8 
 

   
 

II. Ocwen’s Inappropriate Relationships with Affiliated Companies 

A. The February 26, 2014 Letter from the New York State Department of 
Financial Services 

As you are aware, pursuant to a December 4, 2012 Consent Order between Ocwen and 
the New York State Department of Financial Services (“NY Department”), the NY Department 
engaged an independent on-site compliance monitor at Ocwen to undertake a comprehensive 
review of the Company’s servicing operations.  The NY Department’s review, detailed in a 
February 26, 2014 letter from Benjamin M. Lawsky, Superintendant of Financial Services, to 
Ocwen (the “February 26 Letter”), “uncovered . . . potential conflicts between and among 
Ocwen, Altisource Portfolio Solutions, S.A. [(‘Altisource’)] . . . Altisource Residential 
Corporation, Altisource Asset Management Corporation, and Home Loan Servicing Solutions 
Ltd. . . . all of which are chaired by William C. Erbey, who is also the largest shareholder of each 
and the Executive Chairman of Ocwen.”4  

The February 26 Letter stated that Altisource’s Chief Risk Officer, who also served as 
Ocwen’s Chief Risk Officer and reported directly to Mr. Erbey in both capacities, had been 
removed as part of the review.  The February 26 Letter stated that Ocwen’s failure to recognize 
this conflict “warrants further examination.”5  In addition, the February 26 Letter noted that 
because “Ocwen’s management owns stock or stock options in the affiliated companies,” there is 
a “possibility that management has the opportunity and incentive to make decisions concerning 
Ocwen that are intended to benefit the share price of affiliated companies, resulting in harm to 
borrowers, mortgage investors, or Ocwen shareholders as a result.”6  As such, the relationship 
between Ocwen and the related Altisource companies “could create incentives that harm 
borrowers and push homeowners unduly into foreclosure.”7    

The NY Department has requested that Ocwen produce a range of documents concerning, 
among other things, the financial interests of Ocwen’s directors, officers, and employees in these 
affiliated companies and the nature of services provided to Ocwen by these affiliated companies.  
These concerns have already resulted in considerable harm to Ocwen, as earlier this year the NY 
Department halted the transfer of $39 billion of mortgage servicing rights to Ocwen from Wells 
Fargo.   

                                                      
4 Letter from Benjamin M. Lawsky, Superintendant of Financial Services, New York State 
Department of Financial Services to Timothy Hayes, General Counsel, Ocwen Financial Corp. 
(Feb. 26, 2014), at 1. 
5 Id. 
6 Id. 
7 Id. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 13 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 4 of 8 
 

   
 

B. The August 4, 2014 Letter from the New York State Department of Financial 
Services 

On August 4, 2014, Mr. Lawsky again wrote to Ocwen’s General Counsel, this time to 
express concern at “a troubling transaction involving Ocwen’s related, but formally separate, 
company Altisource Portfolio Solutions, S.A. . . . and the provision of force-placed insurance” 
(the “August 4 Letter”).8  The August 4 Letter stated that the arrangement between Ocwen and 
Altisource “appears designed to funnel as much as $65 million in fees annually from already-
distressed homeowners to Altisource for minimal work.”9  The August 4 Letter also expressed 
concern of the role that Mr. Erbey and other Ocwen officers and/or directors played in directing 
business to Altisource.  Mr. Erbey is Ocwen’s largest shareholder and is also the Chairman of, 
and largest shareholder in, Altisource. 

The August 4 Letter further details how, in August 2013, Ocwen appointed an Altisource 
subsidiary, Beltline Road Insurance Agency, Inc. (“Beltline”), as its exclusive insurance 
representative, purportedly to find a new force-placed insurance program for Ocwen.  In January 
2014, Altisource provided a memo to the Credit Committee of Ocwen Mortgage Servicing, Inc., 
a subsidiary of the Company, recommending the appointment of Southwest Business 
Corporation (“SWBC”), an independent insurance agent, as Ocwen’s agent.  SWBC would then 
manage Ocwen’s force-placed insurance program, including negotiating premiums with insurers.  
As part of this arrangement, Altisource recommended itself to provide fee-based services to 
SWBC.  The Credit Committee did not meet to discuss this proposal, no minutes were taken of 
the Credit Committee’s consideration of the proposed transaction, and the proposed transaction 
apparently was not presented for review or approval to any member of the Ocwen Board of 
Directors except Mr. Erbey himself.    

The August 4 Letter further expressed concern that “Ocwen’s use of related companies to 
provide such services raises concerns about whether such transactions are priced fairly and 
conducted at arms-length.”10  While the presence of SWBC ensures that Ocwen and Altisource 
are not directly contracting with each other and gives a superficial appearance of propriety, 
Altisource receives insurance commissions and certain fees seemingly for doing minimal work.  
Mr. Erbey, who owns a significant number of shares in Altisource, therefore appears to have 
benefitted personally from an improper arrangement at the expense of Ocwen’s shareholders’ 
interests.  

                                                      
8 Letter from Benjamin M. Lawsky, Superintendant of Financial Services, New York State 
Department of Financial Services to Timothy Hayes, General Counsel, Ocwen Financial Corp. 
(Aug. 4, 2014). 
9 Id. at 1. 
10 Id. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 14 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 5 of 8 
 

   
 

Moreover, the August 4 Letter “suggests that Ocwen hired Altisource to design Ocwen’s 
new force-placed program with the expectation and intent that Altisource would use this 
opportunity to steer profits to itself.”11  In particular, the August 4 Letter alleged that:  

1. Altisource will reap enormous insurance commissions for having 
recommended that Ocwen hire SWBC. SWBC does the work of 
negotiating premiums, preparing policies, and handling renewals and 
cancellations.  For these services, SWBC receives commissions from 
insurers.  SWBC then passes on a portion of those commissions, 
constituting 15% of net written premium on the policies, to Altisource 
subsidiary Beltline, for “insurance placement services.”  Documents 
indicate that Ocwen expects to force-place policies on its borrowers in 
excess of $400 million per year, therefore giving Altisource earnings of at 
least $60 million per year.  It is unclear what insurance placement 
services, if any, Altisource is providing to justify these commissions.12 

2.  Altisource will be paid a substantial annual fee by Ocwen for providing 
technology support that it appears to be already obligated to provide.  This 
fee relates to monitoring services, whereby Ocwen pays a company to 
monitor whether its borrowers’ insurance remains in effect.  Prior to 2014, 
Ocwen was paying ten cents per loan per month to Assurant for 
monitoring.  In this new arrangement, however, Ocwen has agreed to pay 
double the prior amount – twenty cents per loan per month – to SWBC, 
for each of the approximately 2.8 million borrowers serviced by Ocwen.  
SWBC, in turn, will pass on fifteen of each twenty cents to Altisource, for 
an estimated $5 million per year.  Altisource provides only one service in 
exchange for this fee:  granting SWBC access to Ocwen’s loan files.13 

3. The contracts require SWBC to use Altisource to provide loss draft 
management services for Ocwen borrowers, to pay Altisource $75 per loss 
draft for these services, and to pay Altisource an additional $10,000 per 
month for certain other services.14 

Even more concerning than these conflicts of interest is the fact that this does not appear 
to be an isolated incident.  The NY Department has uncovered a growing body of evidence that 

                                                      
11 Id. at 2. 
12 Id. at 3. 
13 Id. 
14 Id. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 15 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 6 of 8 
 

   
 

Mr. Erbey has approved a number of transactions with these related companies, despite Ocwen’s 
and Altisource’s public claims that Mr. Erbey recuses himself from decisions involving related 
companies.15 

III. Ocwen Must Investigate and Commence Legal Proceedings Against the Directors 
and Officers Responsible for the Damage to the Company 

As noted above, Ocwen has agreed to pay over $2.1 billion to resolve mortgage-servicing 
misconduct allegations and is currently under investigation by the NY Department.  The 
Company’s violations, which have already resulted in a $2.1 billion settlement and the loss of a 
$39 billion contract, are directly traceable to the Company’s directors and officers, who 
consciously violated their fiduciary duties to the Company and its shareholders. 

Tampa hereby demands that the Board investigate the misconduct described in the 
Consent Judgment, the February 26 Letter, and the August 4 Letter; institute litigation against the 
responsible parties; and take remedial measures to prevent a recurrence of such misconduct.  The 
Board should also take necessary steps to ensure that similar issues do not arise in the future.  As 
an initial matter, Tampa demands that the Board immediately begin an investigation into the 
adequacy of Ocwen’s internal controls, focusing on the directors’ failure to properly oversee 
management regarding compliance with federal and state consumer protection laws.  As you 
know, Florida law makes the members of a company’s board of directors, and all persons 
engaged in the company’s management, liable to the company for the damage caused by an 
intentional or negligent violation of their duties.  The investigation should include inquiries into 
whether and how information was presented to the Board by management; whether and how the 
Board was aware that the Company was, inter alia, causing Ocwen to engage in mortgage 
servicing misconduct and violate federal and state consumer protection laws; whether and how 
the Board was aware that the Company was exposed to staggering liability for the foregoing 
violations; and what measures exist to ensure that the Board’s internal controls are respected and 
followed by Ocwen’s executives, employees, independent contractors, and agents.  

The Board also should take prompt action by causing Ocwen to initiate litigation against 
those responsible for the misconduct, including current and former Board members and 
executives who participated in, condoned, or willfully ignored the Company’s malfeasance as 
described in the Consent Judgment, the February 26 Letter, and the August 4 Letter.  We submit 
that a thorough investigation may also identify others within or without Ocwen who are 
responsible for that wrongdoing. 

                                                      
15 See id. at 5. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 16 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 7 of 8 
 

   
 

Finally, the Board must enact meaningful corporate reforms that address the internal 
control and compliance inadequacies that led to the misconduct described in the Consent 
Judgment, the February 26 Letter, and the August 4 Letter.  While we do not intend to 
exhaustively list all reforms that the Board may effectuate, at a minimum, Tampa demands that 
the Board consider and implement the following changes at Ocwen: 

a. Develop and maintain a robust compliance and ethics program that is 
designed to prevent and detect criminal conduct, and that promotes a 
culture of ethical conduct.  The compliance and ethics program should 
include a permanent compliance office headed by a Compliance Officer, 
who should be considered an Executive Officer or part of the Company’s 
Senior Leadership team.  The compliance and ethics program should 
include: (i) an education and in-person training program that relates to the 
laws, regulations, and ethics governing Ocwen’s business, with a special 
focus on consumer protection compliance; (ii) monitoring and review of 
relevant processes to ensure compliance with federal and state consumer 
protection laws; and (iii) a hot-line or other means for Ocwen employees 
to report information, confidentially, regarding compliance or 
noncompliance with consumer protection laws and policies.  Ocwen also 
should ensure that employees can report any violations without fear of 
retribution or reprisal.  Furthermore, the Compliance Officer should 
review the Company’s compliance with consumer protection laws on an 
annual basis, and share the results of such a review with both the Board 
and the Company’s shareholders. 

b. Create full-time positions focused solely on ensuring Ocwen’s compliance 
with federal and state consumer protection laws.  The individuals holding 
these positions would report directly to the Compliance Officer. 

c. Make compliance and ethics a key priority in managing Ocwen.  The 
Board should amend the Code of Conduct to include a more robust review 
of the various federal and state laws that govern directors, executives, 
employees, agents, and independent contractors.  The Code of Conduct 
also should be amended to include information about the compliance and 
ethics program, as well as the Compliance Officer.  The Board should 
review the Code of Conduct annually and must regularly update 
shareholders of the Company’s efforts in this regard. 

d. Authorize the Audit Committee to investigate, review, and determine 
compliance with all consumer protection laws applicable to the 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 17 of 48



 
 

 
Board of Directors                 
Ocwen Financial Corp.  
September 16, 2014 
Page 8 of 8 
 

   
 

Company’s businesses.  In addition, the Audit Committee must contain at 
least one member experienced in compliance and ethics. 

e. Adopt a claw back policy.  This policy would expressly authorize the 
Board to claw back any payments, compensation, or other benefits to any 
director, officer, employee, or independent contractor who participates in 
(or knowingly acquiesces to) any illegal conduct, fraud, or violation of 
Company policy involving willful misconduct. 

f. Implement an external review of all previous transactions between Ocwen 
and Altisource to determine whether any transactions resulted in favorable 
treatment to Altisource at the expense of the Company. 

g. Establish an appropriate committee to review the propriety of any future 
transactions between Ocwen and Altisource.  The committee should report 
its findings to the Board before the transaction may be completed.  No 
member of the committee should hold shares in Altisource.  

In making the foregoing demands to investigate and commence litigation, Tampa does 
not concede that the Board or any member thereof is independent or competent to consider these 
demands. 

Tampa, as an Ocwen shareholder, thanks the Board in advance for its prompt attention to 
this serious matter.  If you have any questions about this letter, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Rebecca M. Katz 

 
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 18 of 48



 

  Page 4f‐1 

Forfeiting Pension ‐ Procedure 

10/21/14 

Approved by 

 
 

Ernest P. Carrera, Chairman 

This procedure  is  the mechanism  that  shall be  followed  if a determination has been made by  the 
Board  that  it  should  pursue  an  investigation  of  whether  an  employee  or  former  employee  has 
committed an offense that qualifies as one that warrants forfeiture of his or her City pension. If the 
investigation  determines  that  ground  exist  to  pursue  the  forfeiture  of  an  employee’s  or  former 
employee’s pension, the Procedures that are enumerated below shall be followed: 
 
A. Upon  receiving  information  that an employee or  former employee has  committed a  crime  that 
falls within the provisions of Section 112.3173, Fla. Stat., the Board shall hire an independent counsel 
to undertake an independent investigation to determine whether the employee or former employee 
has committed an offense that qualifies under the aforementioned Florida Statute for the purpose of 
considering  a hearing before  the Board  to determine  the  forfeiture of his or her pension. At  the 
conclusion of the investigation, the independent counsel shall bring these findings to the Board, and 
the Board shall take a vote to accept or reject the findings of the independent counsel. 
 
B. In considering what action to take, the Board must make an  initial determination of whether the 
offense of which the employee or former employee was convicted is one that falls within the scope 
of the forfeiture statute. 
 
C. The Board shall use  the definitions  that are  found  in Section 112.3173(a)‐(c) Fla. Stat.  in making 
the initial determination of whether to pursue a full evidentiary hearing to forfeit the employee’s or 
former employee’s pension. This Section of the Florida Statutes states: 
 
  1. Section 112.3173(a) defines “Conviction” and “convicted” as: “an adjudication of guilt by a 
  court of  competent  jurisdiction; a plea of guilty or nolo  contendere; a  jury  verdict of guilt 
  when   adjudication  of  guilt  is  withheld  and  the  accused  is  placed  on  probation;  or  a 
  conviction by the Senate of an impeachable offense.” 
 
  2. Section 112.3173(b) defines  “Court”  to mean:  “any  state or  federal  court of  competent 
  jurisdiction which  is exercising  its jurisdiction to consider a proceeding  involving the alleged 
  commission of a specific offense.” 
 
  3.  Section  112.3173(c)  defines  “Public  officer  or  employee”  to  mean:  “any  officer  or 
  employee of any public body, political subdivision, or public instrumentality of the state.”  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 19 of 48



 

   10/21/14 

Forfeiting Pension ‐ Procedure 

D. The specified offenses that warrant forfeiture are found in Section 112.3173(e). They include: 
 
  1. The committing, aiding, or abetting of an embezzlement of public funds; 
 
  2. The committing, aiding, or abetting of any theft by a public officer or employee from his or 
  her employer; 
 
  3. Bribery in connection with the employment of a public officer or employee; 
   

4. Any felony specified in Chapter 838, excerpt ss. 838.15 and 838.16 [This Chapter deals with 
  Bribery, and Misuse of Public Office, and the exclusions deal with “Commercial Bribery.] 
 
  5. The committing of an impeachable offense; or 
   
  6. The committing of any felony by a public officer or employee who, willfully and with intent 
  to defraud the public or the public agency for which the public officer or employee acts  or  in 
  which he or  she  is employed of  the  right  to  receive  the  faithful performance of his or her 
  duty as a public officer or employee,  realizes or obtain, or attempts  to  realize or obtain, a 
  profit,   gain, or advantage, for himself or herself or for some other person through the use 
  or attempted use of the power, rights, privileges, duties, or position of his or her public office 
  or employment position. 
 

7. The committing on or after October 1, 2008, of any  felony defined  in s. 800.04 against a 
victim younger  than 16 years of age, or any  felony defined  in chapter 794 against a victim 
younger than 18 years of age, by a public officer or employee through the use or attempted 
use of power, rights, privileges, duties, or position of his or her public office or employment 
position. 

 
 
E. The offense would have to have taken place as specified in Section 112.3173(3) which states: 
 
FORFEITURE ‐ Any public officer or employee who is convicted of a specified offense committed prior 
to  retirement,  or  whose  office  or  employment  is  terminated  by  reason  of  his  or  her  admitted 
commission, aid or abetment of specified offense, shall forfeit all rights and benefits under any public 
retirement system of which he or she  is a member, except for the return of his or her accumulated 
contribution, as of the date of termination. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4f‐2
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 20 of 48



 

   10/21/14 

Forfeiting Pension ‐ Procedure 

F. If the Board finds that the employee or former employee does not fall under the statute, there will 
be no forfeiture hearing and the employee or former employee will be entitled to his or her pension. 
If, however, a  finding  is made by the Board that the employee or  former employee  falls under the 
above enumerated provisions, then a hearing will be held to determine whether the employee’s or 
former employee’s pension will be forfeited. 
 
G. The hearing  shall be conducted  in a manner  that affords  the employee or  former employee all 
procedural and  substantive due process  rights. These  include notice of  the  forfeiture hearing;  the 
opportunity to be heard; the opportunity to be represented by counsel; the opportunity to present 
oral  and written  testimony;  the  opportunity  to  call witnesses;  the  opportunity  to  cross  examine 
witnesses; and the opportunity to make legal arguments in his or her defense. The Board shall then 
make formal findings of fact and conclusions of law to support its decision.  
 
H.  The Board  shall  use  the  following  procedures  if  it  has made  a  determination  that  a  forfeiture 
hearing will be conducted: 
 
  1. The Respondent (the person whose pension rights are being considered for forfeiture) must 
  be given reasonable notice of  the hearing. Reasonable shall mean no  less  than  fourteen  (14) 
  days, unless waived by all parties. The notice must contain: 
 
    a. A statement of the time, place and nature of the hearing. The hearing shall be a  
    specially  called hearing  in which  the  forfeiture proceedings(s)  shall be  the only order of 
    the business. 
 
  b. A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be  
  held. 
 
 
2. A bill of particulars shall be included with the notice, and it shall contain the following  information:  
 
  a. The identification of the Respondent. 
 
  b. A  statement of when  and how  the Respondent  received notice of  the Board’s  action 
  or proposed action.  
 
  c. An explanation of how the Respondent’s substantial  interests are or will be affected by 
  the action or proposed action. 
 
  d. A statement of all material facts that will be presented by the Board or a statement that 
  there are no disputed facts. 
 

Page 4f‐3
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 21 of 48



 

   10/21/14 

Forfeiting Pension ‐ Procedure 

  e. A statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including a statement of the specific facts the 
  Board contends warrant the agency’s proposed action. 
 
  f. A statement of the specific rules or statutes that the Board contends justifies the Board’s 
  proposed action,  including an explanation of how  the alleged  facts  relate  to  the  specific 
  rules  or statutes. 
 
  g. A statement of  the results sought by  the Board, stating precisely  the action  the Board 
  wishes to take with respect to the proposed action. 
 
 
3. The Board will then adhere to the following procedures during the hearing: 
 
  a. The Board is authorized to receive a written Response from the Respondent should  he 
  or  she  wish  to  file  such  a  Response.  If  a  Response  is  filed,  it must  be  signed  by  the 
  Respondent, the Respondent’s Attorney, or the Respondent’s designated representative. 
 
  b. A certified court reporter should be provided, and all witnesses shall be sworn, and their 
  testimony shall be taken under oath. 
 
  c. Written, pictorial or other evidence may be presented, and  the proper  steps  shall be 
  taken to authenticate such evidence. 
 
  d. The Chairman of the Board shall have the authority to exclude irrelevant, immaterial, or 
  unduly repetitious evidence, but all other evidence of a type commonly relied upon by a 
  reasonably prudent person in the conduct of his or her affairs shall be admissible, whether 
  or not such evidence would be admissible in a trial court in Florida. 
 
  e. The Respondent, his or her  representative,  the board, and  the Board’s representative, 
  shall  be permitted  to conduct cross‐examination when  testimony  is  taken or documents 
  are made a part of the record, and to submit rebuttal testimony. 
 
  f. Unless the  time period  is waived or extended with the consent of the Respondent and 
  the  Board,  a  final Order  should  be  issued  by  the  Board within  ninety  (90)  days  of  the 
  conclusion of  the hearing, and mailed to all parties.  
 
  g.  The  final  Order  shall  contain  findings  of  fact  that  set  forth  with  particularity  the 
  underlying facts of the record that supports the Board’s findings. Hearsay evidence may be 
  used for the   purpose of  supplementing or explaining other evidence, but  it  shall not be 
  sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be admissible over objection in civil 
  actions.  
 

Page 4f‐4
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 22 of 48



 

   10/21/14 

Forfeiting Pension ‐ Procedure 

  h.  The  final Order  shall  also  contain  conclusions  of  law  that  have  been  reached  by  the 
  Board. 
 
  i. The Respondent shall have until ten  (10) days after the final Order  is rendered to file a 
  Motion  for a Rehearing before  the Board, and  the Board  shall  take up  the Motion at  its 
  next   regularly  scheduled meeting  following  Service of  the Motion.  The Motion  shall be 
  served on the General Employee Pension Board’s Coordinator. 
 
  j. The Motion for rehearing shall be heard by the Board, and upon an affirmative vote of 
  the members present and voting, the Motion shall be granted or denied.  If the Motion  is 
  denied,  the Respondent will  then be  required  to pursue his or her  remedy  through  the 
  normal  judicial process of the Florida or Federal Court Systems.  If  the Motion  is granted, 
  the matter will be set for rehearing at the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting at which 
  time  the grounds upon which  the Motion was granted shall be heard, and all of  the due 
  process  procedures  enumerated  above  shall  be  followed  to  the  extent  they  are 
  appropriate under the circumstances of the situation.  
 
  k. If no Motion for Rehearing is filed within the ten (10) day period, the Order of the Board 
  shall be final, and the Respondent will have to pursue his or her appeal through the State 
  or Federal Courts. 

Page 4f‐5
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 23 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 24 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 25 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 26 of 48



LTR-4000 Rev. 02-14 
© 2014 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 1 of 3

Jennifer M Lee
1301 E. Collins Blvd, Ste 111
RICHARDSON, TX 75081

Phone: (214) 570-6282
Email: JMLEE2@travelers.com

August 21, 2014

Tracey Hartgrave
MCGRIFF SEIBELS-WILLIAMS
5080 SPECTRUM DR STE 900E     
RE: Benefit Plan: City of Tampa Employees Deferred Compensation Plan

102 E. 7TH AVE
TAMPA, FL 33602

 Insurance Representative: Sonya C. Little
306 E. Jackson St.
TAMPA, FL 33602

 Expiring Policy Number: 105988033
 Policy Period: September 1, 2014 to September 1, 2015

Dear Tracey Hartgrave:

On behalf of Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America we are pleased to provide the attached proposal of insurance for 
your review. 

The quotes contained in this document are valid until the expiration of your current policy, and are subject to the provision of, and 
Travelers' review and acceptance of, the required underwriting information noted in the Contingencies section.  Travelers reserves the 
right to change the quotes in this document, or to refuse to bind coverage entirely, based on review of the required underwriting 
information or based on adverse change in the risk(s) to be insured prior to the quote expiration date noted in this document. 

Please note that we require a response to this document prior to expiration of the Insured's current policy in order to facilitate policy 
renewal.  The insured's current policy will expire and not be renewed in the absence of a request, and Travelers' agreement, to bind 
coverage.

Travelers is pleased to offer Risk Management PLUS+ Online®, the industry's most comprehensive program for mitigating your 
management liability exposures, which is available to you at no additional cost.  Please visit www.rmplusonline.com to view the 
services that are available.  If you have additional questions about the site please contact your Underwriter.

You can trust Travelers to be there when you need us, and we have financial strength you can depend on.  We're a Fortune 100 
company with more than 150 years of insurance experience.  Over the years we've consistently earned high ratings for financial 
strength and claims-paying ability from independent rating services including A.M. Best, Moody's, and Standard and Poor's.

Thank you for considering Travelers for your client's insurance coverages.  We look forward to discussing this opportunity with you. 
  
Sincerely,

Jennifer M Lee
Travelers Bond & Financial Products

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 27 of 48



LTR-4000 Rev. 02-14 
© 2014 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 2 of 3

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
QUOTE OPTION #1

LIABILITY COVERAGES:                       

Coverage Limit
 Additional 

Defense 
Limit

Retention   Continuity 
Date

Prior & Pending 
Proceeding 

 Date
Designated Benefit Plan Fiduciary 
Liability  

$5,000,000 for all Claims N/A $50,000(A) for each 
Claim under 

Insuring Agreement A 
 

09/01/2013 09/01/2013

TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM - $18,968.00
(Other term options listed below, if available)

COVERAGE DETAILS:    
Settlement Program Limit of Liability: $100,000 for each Settlement Program Notice, which amount is included 

within, and not in addition to, any applicable Designated Benefit Plan 
Fiduciary limit of liability

HIPAA Limit of Liability: $100,000 which amount is included within, and not in addition to, any 
applicable Designated Benefit Plan Fiduciary limit of liability

502(c) Penalties Limit of Liability: $100,000 which amount is included within, and not in addition to, any 
applicable Designated Benefit Plan Fiduciary limit of liability

EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD AND RUN-OFF:

Extended Reporting Period for Liability Coverages:

                                            Additional Premium Percentage: 75%
                                            Additional Months: 12

Run-Off Extended Reporting Period for Liability Coverages:

                                            Additional Premium Percentage: 200%
                                            Additional Months: 36

CLAIM DEFENSE FOR ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE, LIABILITY COVERAGES AND/OR CYBER 
COVERAGE: 
Duty to Defend

ANNUAL REINSTATEMENT:                 
   Liability Coverage Limit of Liability: Applicable

PREMIUM DETAIL:

Term Payment 
   Type 

Premium Taxes Surcharges Total 
Premium

Total Term 
 Premium 

1 Year Prepaid $18,968.00 $0.00 $417.29 $19,385.29 $19,385.29
            

        
POLICY FORMS APPLICABLE TO QUOTE OPTION # 1: 
DBP-15001-1112 Designated Benefit Plan Fiduciary Liability Coverage Declarations
DBP-16001-1112 Designated Benefit Plan Fiduciary Liability Coverage

ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO QUOTE OPTION # 1: 

DBP-17009-1112 Florida Changes Endorsement
DBP-17055-1112 Table of Contents Florida
DBP-19001-1112 Designation of Insurance Representative Endorsement

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 28 of 48



LTR-4000 Rev. 02-14 
© 2014 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 3 of 3

DBP-19002-1112 Waiver of Recourse Endorsement
DBP-19003-1112 Governmental Plan Endorsement
DBP-19030-1112 Tie-In-Limits Endorsement

Policy Number 104786797
Limit 5000000

DBP-19071-1112 Cap on Losses From Certified Acts of Terrorism Endorsement 
DBP-19077-0313 Administrative Coverage for Specified Benefit Plan Endorsement

CONTINGENCIES APPLICABLE TO QUOTE OPTION # 1: 

This quote is contingent on the acceptable underwriting review of the following information prior to the quote expiration date.

1 None

    QUOTE NOTES: 
 
  
NOTICES:  

It is the agent's or broker's responsibility to comply with any applicable laws regarding disclosure to the policyholder of 
commission or other compensation we pay, if any, in connection with this policy or program. 
   
Important Notice Regarding Compensation Disclosure 
For information about how Travelers compensates independent agents, brokers, or other insurance producers, please visit this 
website:  http://www.travelers.com/w3c/legal/Producer_Compensation_Disclosure.html  
   
If you prefer, you can call the following toll-free number: 1-866-904-8348.  Or you can write to us at Travelers, Enterprise 
Development, One Tower Square, Hartford, CT 06183. 

Coverage Disclaimer: 
THIS QUOTE DOES NOT AMEND, OR OTHERWISE AFFECT, THE PROVISIONS OR COVERAGE OF ANY 
RESULTING INSURANCE POLICY ISSUED BY TRAVELERS. IT IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT COVERAGE 
DOES OR DOES NOT EXIST FOR ANY PARTICULAR CLAIM OR LOSS UNDER ANY SUCH POLICY. 
COVERAGE DEPENDS ON THE APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE ACTUAL POLICY ISSUED, THE FACTS 
AND CIRCUMSTANCES INVOLVED IN THE CLAIM OR LOSS AND ANY APPLICABLE LAW.  

THE PRECEDING OUTLINES THE COVERAGE FORMS, LIMITS OF INSURANCE, POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 
AND OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS PROVIDED IN THIS QUOTE. ANY POLICY COVERAGES, LIMITS OF 
INSURANCE, POLICY ENDORSEMENTS, COVERAGE SPECIFICATIONS, OR OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
THAT YOU HAVE REQUESTED THAT ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS QUOTE HAVE NOT BEEN AGREED TO BY 
TRAVELERS. PLEASE REVIEW THIS QUOTE CAREFULLY AND IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE 
CONTACT YOUR TRAVELERS REPRESENTATIVE.

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 29 of 48

thow
Typewritten Text
Short term policy premium for coverage from 09/01/14 - 04/15/15 is $11,745 + $152.69 FL Fees = $11,897.69



LTR-4013 Ed. 01-09 Printed in U.S.A.  
©2009 The Travelers Companies, Inc. All Rights Reserved Page 1 of 2

  IMPORTANT NOTICE TO AGENTS OR BROKERS -  
NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE  
TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT OF 2002 

Dear Agent or Broker: 

In order that Travelers may fulfill its requirements under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002, as 
amended, and to protect you from any errors or omissions exposure, it is important that the attached 
"Disclosure Notice - Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002" (LTR-4013 Ed. 1-09) is delivered with the 
new or renewal quote for this account. 
  
Delivery may be accomplished in a variety of ways, including U.S. Mail, express mail, fax,  
or in person.  
  
 We appreciate your cooperation. 

Sincerely, 

The Travelers Companies, Inc.  
 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 30 of 48



LTR-4013 Ed. 01-09 Printed in U.S.A.  
©2009 The Travelers Companies, Inc. All Rights Reserved Page 2 of 2

DISCLOSURE NOTICE -  
TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT OF 2002  

  
On December 26, 2007, the President of the United States signed into law amendments to the Terrorism Risk Insurance 
Act of 2002 (the "Act"), which, among other things, extend the Act and expand its scope. The Act establishes a program 
under which the Federal Government may partially reimburse "Insured Losses" (as defined in the Act) caused by "acts of 
terrorism". An "act of terrorism" is defined in Section 102(l) of the Act to mean any act that is certified by the Secretary of 
the Treasury - in concurrence with the Secretary of State and the Attorney General of the United States - to be an act of 
terrorism;to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life,property,or infrastructure; to have resulted in 
damage within the United States,or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises 
of a United States Mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the 
civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by 
coercion.   
  
The Federal Government's share of compensation for Insured Losses is 85% of the amount of Insured Losses in excess 
of each Insurer's statutorily established deductible, subject to the "Program Trigger", (as defined in the Act). In no event, 
however, will the Federal Government or any Insurer be required to pay any portion of the amount of aggregate Insured 
Losses occurring in any one year that exceeds $100,000,000,000, provided that such Insurer has met its deductible. If 
aggregate Insured Losses exceed $100,000,000,000 in any one year, your coverage may therefore be reduced.  
  
 Please note that no separate additional premium charge has been made for the terrorism coverage required by the Act. 
The premium charge that is allocable to such coverage is inseparable from and imbedded in your overall premium, and 
does not include any charge for the portion of losses covered by the Federal Government under the Act. The charge is 
no more than one percent of your premium. 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 31 of 48



 
 

 
 

 

 
General Employee Retirement Fund 

 
Fund’s Net Investment Return 

 
Actual Rate of Return for the Period 
October 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014 

 
DROP Option 1: +11.41% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Past Performance is not an indicator of Future Results. 

 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 32 of 48



CITY OF TAMPA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2014

Calculation Of Net Investment Rate Of Return
   For The Period From 10/01/2013 - 06/30/2014

ADDITIONS Beginning Assets Available + ( (Total Contributions-Total Deductions) /2 )

Contributions:  
Employer $ 18,344,910 Or

Employees 69,452 71,726,897

Total contributions 18,414,362 636,572,663 + ( ( 18,414,362 - 34,072,716 ) / 2 )

Investment earnings:

Interest and dividends 9,248,091 Or

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 64,828,555

Total investment earnings (loss) 74,076,646 71,726,897

Less investment expense 2,349,749 636,572,663 + (7,829,177)   

Net investment earnings (loss) 71,726,897

Total additions, net 90,141,259 Or

DEDUCTIONS 71,726,897

Pension benefits 33,843,353 628,743,486    

Administrative expenses 229,363 Or

Total deductions 34,072,716

Change in net assets 56,068,543 11.41% (For the period 10/01/13- 06/30/14)
Net Assets - September 30, 2013 636,572,663    
Net Assets - June 30, 2014 $ 692,641,206

Net Investment EarningsFund

General

Employees

Retirement

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 33 of 48



 
 

 
 

 

 
General Employee Retirement Fund 

 
2a‐7 Money Market Fund 
 (Low Risk, Variable Rate) 

 
Annualized Rate of Return 

as of June 30, 2014 
 

DROP Option 2: + 0.01% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Past Performance is not an indicator of Future Results. 

 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 34 of 48



Agency

Monthly

Print all tabs

Tell a Friend

������ Include in My Portfolio

Objective
The Fund seeks high current income with liquidity and stability of principal. 

Permissible Investments
The Fund invests exclusively in high-quality, short-term securities that are issued or guaranteed by the U.S.
government or by U.S. government agencies and instrumentalities.

Some of the securities purchased by the Fund may be subject to repurchase agreements.

The Fund will comply with SEC rules applicable to all money market funds, including Rule 2a-7 under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940.

Performance basics

Annualized returns (as of 6/30/2014)

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

at NAV 0.01% 0.01% 0.02% 1.61%

The performance quoted is past performance and is not a guarantee of future results. Current 

performance may be higher or lower than the performance data shown. For performance 

current to the most recent month-end please call 1-800-766-7722.

30 day average yield

Jan 14 Feb 14 Mar 14 Apr 14 May 14 Jun 14

0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%

7-day SEC yield as of June 30, 2014 was 0.01%

An investment in a money market fund is not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any 

other government agency. Although money market funds strive to preserve the value of 

the investment at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in a money 

market fund. Performance may reflect the waiver of a portion of the fund's fees. If fees had 

not been waived, the 7-day SEC yield would have been -0.23%.

Money market ratings

S&P Rating** AAAm

Moody's Rating** Aaa-mf

Fitch Rating** AAAmmf

** Moody's defines Money Market Funds with an 'Aaa-mf' rating as having a very strong ability to 

meet the dual objectives of providing liquidity and preserving capital. S&P defines Money Market 

Funds that have an 'AAAm' rating as demonstrating extremely strong capacity to maintain 

principal stability and to limit exposure to credit risk. Fitch defines Money Market Funds with an 

'AAAmmf' rating as having extremely strong capacity to achieve fund's investment objective of 

preserving principal and providing shareholder liquidity through limiting credit, market and liquidity 

risk. The ratings do not eliminate the risks associated with investing in the Fund. For information 

on rating methodologies, please visit the agency websites at http://www.moodys.com/; 

http://www.standardandpoors.com/ratings/en/us/ and http://www.fitchratings.com 

Minimum investments

Minimum investments Minimum subsequent investments

Regular $5M Regular No Minimum.

IRA $5M IRA No Minimum.

Daily stats (as of 7/28/2014) 

NAV 7 Day SEC Yield

$1.00 0.01%

0.00 | 0.00%

YTD 0.01%

Page 2 of 4J.P. Morgan Asset Management - Global Liquidity: U.S. Government Money Market Fund - Age...

9/12/2014mhtml:file://R:\GE Pension\BOARD AGENDA PACKAGES\2014\2014 09 - September Agenda\...

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 35 of 48

rf42
Highlight

rf42
Highlight

rf42
Highlight



 
 

 
 

 

 
General Employee Retirement Fund 

 
JP Morgan Funds – Daily Rate  

For U.S. Government Money Market 
 

Annualized Rate of Return 
as of September 2, 2014 

 
DROP Holding Account Rate: + 0.01% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Account where DROP participants’ funds are held until Payout Date. 

 
Past Performance is not an indicator of Future Results. 

 

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 36 of 48



JPMorgan Funds - Daily Rate Report
09/02/2014

TA
Fund #

Fund Name Ticker Distribution
Factor*

1 Day
Simple

7 Day
Avg

7 Day
SEC

30 Day
Avg

WAM WAL Net Assets

Agency
VMIXX  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%0.000000274 Prime MM 349  53 108,616,291,119.4185
AJLXX  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%0.000000274 Liquid Assets MM 3909  56 17,709,598,478.7080
OGAXX  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%0.000000274 U.S. Government MM 1603  54 52,836,971,810.3684
AJTXX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%0.000000000 U.S. Treasury Plus MM 3917  41 14,586,795,036.5147
VFIXX  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%0.000000274 Federal MM 355  48 4,371,449,187.1780
VPIXX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%0.000000000 100% U.S. Treas MM 676  45 23,209,925,426.3959
VTIXX  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%0.000000274 Tax Free MM 244  23 19,063,173,388.8724
JMAXX  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%  0.01%0.000000274 Municipal MM 3953  36 2,847,457,584.6036

FOR REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY/NOT TO BE USED AS ADVERTISING OR SALES LITERATURE

Must be preceded by a prospectus

Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Current performance may be higher or lower than the performance data shown. 

An investment in a money market fund is not insured by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although money market funds strive to preserve the value of the investment at $1.00 per share, it is possible to 
lose money by investing in a money market fund.

The Funds may currently be waiving certain fees and expenses.  Please note the removal of the waiver would reduce returns.

JPMorgan Funds are distributed by JPMorgan Distribution Services, Inc., which is an affiliate of JPMorgan Chase & Co. Affiliates of JPMorgan Chase & Co. receive fees for providing various services to the 
Funds. JPMorgan Distribution Services, Inc., member FINRA/SIPC. 

*Friday's factor includes the weekend.

Page 1 of 1GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 37 of 48

rf74
Highlight

rf42
Highlight



 Preliminary

Asset Class
Market 

Values (000s) % Actual % Target
Over/Under 

Target

Large Cap Equity $238,229 34.4 %  25.0 %  9.4 %  
Small Cap Equity $60,724 8.8 %  10.0 %  (1.2)%  

International Equity $124,534 18.0 %  20.0 %  (2.0)%  
Emerging Markets Equity $31,176 4.5 %  5.0 %  (0.5)%  

Fixed Income $164,851 23.8 %  30.0 %  (6.2)%  
Real Estate $68,072 9.8 %  10.0 %  (0.2)%  

Cash and Equivalents $5,756 0.8 %  --      0.8 %  
T t l $693 343 100 0% 100 0%

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund
For the Periods Ending August 31, 2014

34.4%

8.8%

18.0%

4.5%

23.8%

9.8%

0.8%

25.0%

10.0%

20.0%

5.0%

30.0%

10.0%

0.0%
0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

Large Cap Equity Small Cap Equity International Equity Emerging Markets Equity Fixed Income Real Estate Cash and Equivalents

Actual vs. Target Asset Allocation

Actual Allocation Target Allocation

Total $693,343 100.0% 100.0% 

Market 
Values 000s

% of Total 
Portfolio

One
Month

Year
to Date

Sept 30,
FYTD

One
Year

Three
Years

Five
Years

Ten
Years

Since
Inception

Total Portfolio (7/85) $693,343 100.0 %   2.3 % 6.3 % 12.5 % 17.8 % 13.1 % 11.8 % 8.1 % 9.0 %

Policy Index 1 2.0 % 6.5 % 11.7 % 16.1 % 12.2 % 11.1 % 7.8 % --
Large Cap Equity (4/02) $238,229 34.4 %   3.8 % 9.8 % 22.9 % 29.7 % 22.4 % 17.5 % 9.9 % 8.2 %
S&P 500 4.0 % 9.9 % 21.4 % 25.3 % 20.6 % 16.9 % 8.4 % 6.7 %
Small Cap Equity (1/99) $60,724 8.8 %   4.8 % 2.6 % 12.4 % 18.8 % 21.5 % 19.4 % 10.5 % 11.9 %
Russell 2000 5.0 % 1.8 % 10.6 % 17.7 % 19.0 % 17.0 % 9.4 % 8.2 %
Non U.S. Equity Composite (03/03) $155,711 22.5 %   0.7 % 1.6 % 6.5 % 14.4 % 9.9 % 9.6 % 8.0 % 10.7 %

International Equity Index 2 0.3 % 4.6 % 10.1 % 18.2 % 11.2 % 9.0 % 8.4 % 11.4 %
Fixed Income (10/84) $164,851 23.8 %   1.3 % 6.6 % 6.4 % 7.9 % 4.4 % 5.6 % 5.3 % 7.2 %
Barclays US Aggregate 1.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.7 % 2.9 % 4.5 % 4.7 % 7.7 %
Real Estate (07/02) $68,072 9.8 %   0.8 % 9.2 % 11.2 % 15.6 % 11.6 % 10.8 % 8.5 % 8.4 %

Real Estate Composite Index 3 0.8 % 9.6 % 11.0 % 16.1 % 12.6 % 11.9 % -- --
Cash and Equivalents (06/93) $5,756 0.8 %   0.0 % 0.1 % 0.1 % 0.1 % 0.2 % 0.2 % 1.8 % 3.2 %
US T-Bills 90 Day 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.1 % 0.1 % 1.6 % 3.0 %

 © 2014 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  1
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 38 of 48



 Preliminary

Market 
Values 000s

% of Total 
Portfolio

One
Month

Year
to Date

Sept 30,
FYTD

One
Year

Three
Years

Five
Years

Ten
Years

Since
Inception

Large Cap Equity Composite (4/02) $238,229 34.4 %   3.8 % 9.8 % 22.9 % 29.7 % 22.4 % 17.5 % 9.9 % 8.2 %
S&P 500 4.0 % 9.9 % 21.4 % 25.3 % 20.6 % 16.9 % 8.4 % 6.7 %
Waddell & Reed Investment Management (12/04) $117,289 4.5 % 9.9 % 23.5 % 32.4 % 20.5 % 17.0 % -- 10.1 %

Russell 1000 Growth 4.6 % 9.5 % 20.9 % 26.3 % 20.0 % 17.8 % 9.2 % 8.8 %
Dodge & Cox Incorporated (4/02) $120,940 17.4 %   3.1 % 9.5 % 22.3 % 27.0 % 24.1 % 17.8 % 9.1 % 8.8 %

Russell 1000 Value 3.7 % 10.4 % 21.4 % 24.4 % 21.6 % 16.6 % 8.2 % 7.4 %

Small Cap Equity Composite (1/99) $60,724 8.8 %   4.8 % 2.6 % 12.4 % 18.8 % 21.5 % 19.4 % 10.5 % 11.9 %
Russell 2000 5.0 % 1.8 % 10.6 % 17.7 % 19.0 % 17.0 % 9.4 % 8.2 %

ClariVest Asset Management (7/07) $13,980 2.0 %   5.8 % 1.4 % 12.6 % 19.5 % 22.1 % 19.5 % -- 5.6 %
Russell 2000 Growth 5.6 % 1.4 % 9.7 % 17.3 % 19.2 % 18.3 % 10.2 % 7.6 %

GW Capital (3/12) $22,678 3.3 %   3.5 % 1.4 % 9.9 % 15.3 % -- -- -- 17.7 %
Russell 2000 Value 4.4 % 2.2 % 11.7 % 18.1 % 18.8 % 15.7 % 8.4 % 17.6 %

WTC SC 2000 (1/99) $24,066 3.5 %   5.6 % 4.4 % 14.8 % 22.0 % 23.5 % 22.1 % 12.5 % 11.9 %
Russell 2000 5.0 % 1.8 % 10.6 % 17.7 % 19.0 % 17.0 % 9.4 % 8.2 %

Non U.S. Equity Composite (3/03) $155,711 22.5 %   0.7 % 1.6 % 6.5 % 14.4 % 9.9 % 9.6 % 8.0 % 10.7 %
International Equity Index 2 0.3 % 4.6 % 10.1 % 18.2 % 11.2 % 9.0 % 8.4 % 11.4 %

Mercator International Fund (4/03) $59,326 8.6 %   (0.5)% 0.2 % 5.5 % 13.5 % 10.3 % 7.3 % 7.0 % 10.8 %
Fisher Investments (7/03) $65,208 9.4 %   0.8 % 0.1 % 6.3 % 14.0 % 11.1 % 10.1 % 8.4 % 9.7 %

MSCI EAFE (0.2)% 2.9 % 8.8 % 16.9 % 11.9 % 8.7 % 7.5 % 9.2 %
MSCI EAFE Value (0.5)% 4.2 % 10.7 % 19.4 % 12.9 % 7.8 % 7.3 % 11.3 %

MSCI EAFE Growth 0.2 % 1.8 % 7.0 % 14.5 % 10.8 % 9.6 % 7.7 % 10.0 %
Emerging Markets Equity

Aberdeen Asset Management (6/08) $31 176 4 5 % 3 0 % 12 7 % 12 1 % 20 7 % 7 5 % 12 9 % -- 7 7 %

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund
For the Periods Ending August 31, 2014

Aberdeen Asset Management (6/08) $31,176 4.5 %   3.0 % 12.7 % 12.1 % 20.7 % 7.5 % 12.9 % 7.7 %
MSCI Emerging Markets 2.3 % 10.9 % 13.0 % 20.4 % 4.7 % 8.2 % 12.5 % 1.1 %

Fixed Income Composite (10/84) $164,851 23.8 %   1.3 % 6.6 % 6.4 % 7.9 % 4.4 % 5.6 % 5.3 % 7.2 %
Barclays US Aggregate 1.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.7 % 2.9 % 4.5 % 4.7 % 7.7 %

Taplin, Canida & Habacht (3/97) $60,757 8.8 %   1.2 % 6.3 % 6.7 % 7.9 % 4.6 % 5.9 % 5.4 % 6.3 %
Barclays US Aggregate 1.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.7 % 2.9 % 4.5 % 4.7 % 5.8 %

State Street Global Advisors (6/03) $56,473 8.1 %   1.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.7 % 3.0 % 4.5 % 4.8 % 4.6 %
Barclays US Aggregate 1.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.7 % 2.9 % 4.5 % 4.7 % 4.5 %

Brandywine (2/12) $47,620 6.9 %   1.7 % 9.0 % 8.3 % 10.9 % -- -- -- 5.3 %
Citigroup World Govt Bond 0.5 % 4.5 % 3.4 % 5.4 % (0.1)% 2.7 % 4.6 % 0.2 %

Real Estate Composite (7/02) $68,072 9.8 %   0.8 % 9.2 % 11.2 % 15.6 % 11.6 % 10.8 % 8.5 % 8.4 %
Real Estate Composite Index 3 0.8 % 9.6 % 11.0 % 16.1 % 12.6 % 11.9 % -- --

Private Real Estate Composite (6/04) $2,310 0.3 %   0.0 % 9.5 % 16.0 % 16.7 % 14.7 % 7.4 % (2.0)% (1.7)%

UBS Global Asset Management (9/00) 4 $32,601 4.7 %   -- 5.1 % 7.4 % 10.4 % 10.5 % 9.3 % 7.8 % 8.1 %
NFI ODCE Net as of 06/14 -- 5.0 % 8.1 % 11.8 % 11.4 % 9.0 % 6.2 % 6.6 %

CBRE Clarion (7/09) $33,161 4.8 %   1.6 % 13.7 % 14.6 % 21.2 % 12.5 % 13.4 % -- 16.7 %
FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Dev RE 1.5 % 14.3 % 13.7 % 20.3 % 13.0 % 13.9 % -- 17.2 %

Cash and Equivalents (6/93) $5,756 0.8 %   0.0 % 0.2 % 0.2 % 0.2 % 0.2 % 0.3 % 1.8 % 3.3 %
Private Real Estate Residual Cash -- --   -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

1

2

3

4 UBS Global Asset Management market value and performance data are as of June 30, 2014.

Dates reflect the first full month of performance.

The Policy Index consists of 30% Barclays US Aggregate, 20% MSCI EAFE, 25% Russell 1000, 10% Russell 2000, 5% MSCI Emerging Markets, 5% NFI ODCE net and 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE. Prior to June 2014, the Policy Index consisted of 30% Barclays US 
Aggregate, 18% MSCI EAFE, 29% Russell 1000, 7% Russell 2000, 3% MSCI EAFE SMID NetDiv, 3% MSCI Emerging Markets, 5% NFI ODCE net and 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE.  Prior to August 2009, the Policy Index consisted of 30% Barclays US Aggregate, 
18% MSCI EAFE, 32% Russell 1000, 8% Russell 2000, 3.5% MSCI EAFE Small Cap, 3.5% MSCI Emerging Markets, and 5% NFI ODCE net. 

The Non U.S. Equity Policy Index consists of 80% MSCI EAFE and 20% MSCI Emerging Markets Index. Prior to June 2014, the Non U.S. Equity Policy Index consisted of 75% MSCI EAFE, 12.5% MSCI EAFE SMID NetDiv, and 12.5% MSCI Emerging Markets Index.

The Real Estate Policy Index consists of 50% NFI ODCE net and 50% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE Index.

 © 2014 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  2
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 39 of 48



One
Month

Year
to Date

Sept 30,
 FYTD

One
Year

Three
Years

Five
Years

Ten
Years

Equity Markets
Core
S&P 500 4.0 % 9.9 % 21.4 % 25.3 % 20.6 % 16.9 % 8.4 %
Russell 1000 4.1 % 9.9 % 21.1 % 25.4 % 20.8 % 17.2 % 8.8 %
Russell 2000 5.0 % 1.8 % 10.6 % 17.7 % 19.0 % 17.0 % 9.4 %
Russell 2500 4.9 % 5.7 % 14.9 % 21.5 % 20.3 % 18.5 % 10.4 %
Russell Mid Cap 4.8 % 10.6 % 19.8 % 25.3 % 21.0 % 19.3 % 11.1 %
Growth
S&P 500/Citigroup Growth 4.4 % 10.6 % 22.9 % 27.5 % 20.3 % 17.9 % 8.8 %
Russell 1000 Growth 4.6 % 9.5 % 20.9 % 26.3 % 20.0 % 17.8 % 9.2 %
Russell 2000 Growth 5.6 % 1.4 % 9.7 % 17.3 % 19.2 % 18.3 % 10.2 %
Russell 2500 Growth 5.5 % 4.2 % 13.0 % 20.2 % 19.8 % 19.4 % 11.1 %
Russell Mid Cap Growth 5.4 % 8.9 % 17.9 % 23.7 % 19.7 % 19.2 % 11.0 %
NASDAQ Comp 4.8 % 9.7 % 21.5 % 27.6 % 21.1 % 17.9 % 9.6 %
Value
S&P 500/Citigroup Value 3.6 % 9.1 % 19.9 % 22.8 % 21.0 % 15.9 % 7.9 %
Russell 1000 Value 3.7 % 10.4 % 21.4 % 24.4 % 21.6 % 16.6 % 8.2 %
Russell 2000 Value 4.4 % 2.2 % 11.7 % 18.1 % 18.8 % 15.7 % 8.4 %
Russell 2500 Value 4.4 % 7.2 % 16.7 % 22.6 % 20.7 % 17.7 % 9.7 %
Russell Mid Cap Value 4.2 % 12.5 % 22.1 % 27.2 % 22.3 % 19.4 % 10.9 %
International Markets
MSCI EAFE (0.2)% 2.9 % 8.8 % 16.9 % 11.9 % 8.7 % 7.5 %
MSCI World ex US 0.1 % 4.0 % 9.8 % 17.6 % 11.3 % 8.8 % 7.8 %
MSCI World 2.2 % 7.2 % 15.9 % 21.7 % 16.1 % 13.0 % 8.2 %

Fixed Income
BofA ML 1 Yr Treasury Note 0.1 % 0.2 % 0.2 % 0.3 % 0.3 % 0.5 % 2.0 %
BofA ML High Yield Master II 1.5 % 5.8 % 9.5 % 10.6 % 10.4 % 12.2 % 8.6 %
Barclays Intermediate Agg 0.8 % 3.3 % 3.1 % 4.2 % 2.2 % 3.8 % 4.4 %
Barclays US Aggregate 1.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.7 % 2.9 % 4.5 % 4.7 %
Barclays Intermediate G/C 0.7 % 2.7 % 2.7 % 3.5 % 2.1 % 3.7 % 4.1 %
Barclays US Credit 1.4 % 7.2 % 8.2 % 9.0 % 5.4 % 6.8 % 5.6 %

Market Overview
For the Periods Ending August 31, 2014

 © 2014 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  3
GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 40 of 48



LONGEVITY RETIREMENTS

Employee Employee Date of Date Separation

Number Name Birth Hired Date Yrs Mos Department

42078‐00 Randolph Kramer 9/14/1954 6/20/1994 2/15/2014 18 8 Clean City

DROP APPLICATIONS

Employee Employee Date of Date Separation

Number Name Birth Hired Date Yrs Mos Department

46195‐00 David Coleman 10/10/1952 12/16/2002 8/16/2014 11 8 DPW

47646‐00 Earl Silas 8/22/1952 7/6/2004 8/30/2014 10 2 Police

40810‐00 Lynn Lindsay 11/1/1951 9/14/1992 8/30/2014 21 11 DPW

18964‐00 Kathy Beck 8/16/1952 4/22/1974 8/30/2014 40 4 Plng & Dev.

DROP TO LONGEVITY 

Employee Employee Date of Date Exit Drop

Number Name Birth Hired Date Yrs Mos Department

22499‐00 Clyde Rohde 4/12/1951 7/5/1977 8/11/2014 30 0 TRNS‐Traffic

22485‐00 Keith Larsen 12/2/1950 6/27/1977 8/8/2014 30 0 Contract

35884‐00 Rosa Gonzalez 10/3/1948 2/20/1989 8/15/2014 22 5 Police

23412‐00 Mary Jenkins 6/24/1953 2/9/1978 8/22/2014 30 0 Plng & Dev.

DISABILITY RETIREMENT

Employee Employee Date of Date Separation

Number Name Birth Hired Date Yrs Mos Department

41775‐00 Craig Quinn Sr. 9/14/1962 2/21/1994 8/4/2014 20 5 Wastewater

44525‐00 Lorrie Mejia 3/10/1969 2/11/1998 6/26/2013 15 4 DPW

DEFERRED RETIREMENTS

Employee Employee Date of Date Separation

Number Name Birth Hired Date Yrs Mos Department

01958‐00 Anthony Kasper 1/14/1978 4/19/2004 8/16/2014 10 4 Wastewater

48685‐00 Irvin Lee 4/2/1959 8/3/2006 8/15/2014 8 0 DPW

47397‐00 James Hudock 3/8/1973 4/12/2004 8/22/2014 10 4 Contract Admin

47160‐00 Ralph Bolin 8/9/1953 8/18/2003 8/26/2014 11 0 Water 

SPOUSE BENEFITS

Number Spouse Decedent  Death

48675‐01 Cynthia Calhoun  Phillip Calhoun 8/5/2014

ESTATE PAYMENTS

Employee Date of

Number Beneficiary Decedent  Death

10343‐80 Kathryn & Keith Cummings Trust Kathryn Cummings 5/9/2014

02038‐80 Wayne Wanamaker Marion Wanamaker 6/27/2014

DEATH BENEFITS

48675‐80 Cynthia Calhoun Phillip Calhoun 8/5/2014

Service

Service

Service

City of Tampa 

General Employees Retirement Fund

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments

Consent Agenda

September 16, 2014

Service

Service

GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 41 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 42 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 43 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 44 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 45 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 46 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 47 of 48



GE Board of Trustees Agenda Package - September 16,2014 Page 48 of 48


	Revised 457B Fiduciary Renewal Quote.pdf
	LTR-4000-0214
	LTR-4013-0109




